
Committee Agenda

1

AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH
Wednesday, 25th April, 2018
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee South, which 
will be held at: 

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Wednesday, 25th April, 2018
at 7.30 pm .

Derek Macnab
Acting Chief Executive

Democratic Services 
Officer

J. Leither  Tel: (01992) 564243
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:

Councillors G Chambers (Chairman), A Patel (Vice-Chairman), R Baldwin, A Beales, 
K Chana, S Heap, R Jennings, J Jennings, H Kauffman, J Knapman, A Lion, L Mead, 
G Mohindra, S Neville, C P Pond, C C Pond, C Roberts, D Roberts, B Sandler, D Sunger 
and D Wixley

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy.

Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should speak to the webcasting officer or 
otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the meeting.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Public Relations Manager 
on 01992 564039.



Area Planning Sub-Committee South Wednesday, 25 April 2018

2

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  

1. This meeting is to be webcast; 

2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before 
speaking; and 

3. the Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such 
third parties).

If you are seated in the public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras will 
capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will become 
part of the broadcast.

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should speak the webcasting officer.”

2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUB-COMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8)

General advice to people attending the meeting is attached.

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(Director of Governance) To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, requires that the permission of 
the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, before urgent 
business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda of which the 
statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

6. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 9 - 80)

(Director of Governance)  To consider planning applications as set out in the attached 
schedule

Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control.

7. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  

Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 



Area Planning Sub-Committee South Wednesday, 25 April 2018

3

information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number

Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting.

Background Papers:  Article 17 - Access to Information, Procedure Rules of the 
Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 
report is based;  and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information and in respect of executive reports, the advice of any political 
advisor.

The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the date of the 
meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of background papers.



This page is intentionally left blank



Revised ST (August 2017)

Advice to Public and Speakers at the Council’s District Development Management 
Committee and Area Plans Sub-Committees

Are the meetings open to the public?

Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded.

When and where is the meeting?

Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of 
the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and Members of the Committee. 

Can I speak?

If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the 
day before the meeting, by telephoning the number shown on the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak; you must register with 
Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.

Who can speak?

Three classes of speakers are generally allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a 
group), the local Parish or Town Council and the applicant or his/her agent. In some cases, a 
representative of another authority consulted on the application may also be allowed to 
speak.

What can I say?

You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that 
you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify 
matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Committee members. 

If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Committee will determine the 
application in your absence.

If you have registered to speak on a planning application to be considered by the District 
Development Management Committee, Area Plans Sub-Committee East, Area Plans Sub-
Committee West or Area Plans Sub-Committee South you will address the Committee from 
within the Council Chamber at the Civic Offices. If you simply wish to attend a meeting of 
any of these Committees to observe the proceedings, you will be seated in the public gallery 
of the Council Chamber.

Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?

Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained from Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be 
copied to the Planning Officer dealing with the application.

How are the applications considered?

The Committee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen 
to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ 
presentations. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2

http://www.eppingforesdc.gov.uk/


Revised ST (August 2017)

The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or 
his/her agent. The Committee will then debate the application and vote on either the 
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Committee. Should 
the Committee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, it is 
required to give its reasons for doing so.

An Area Plans Sub-Committee is required to refer applications to the District Development 
Management Committee where:

(a) the Sub-Committee’s proposed decision is a substantial departure from:

(i) the Council's approved policy framework; or
(ii) the development or other approved plan for the area; or
(iii) it would be required to be referred to the Secretary of State for approval as 

required by current government circular or directive;

(b) the refusal of consent may involve the payment of compensation; or

(c) the District Development Management Committee have previously considered the 
application or type of development and has so requested; or

(d) the Sub-Committee wish, for any reason, to refer the application to the District 
Development Management Committee for decision by resolution.

Further Information

Further information can be obtained from Democratic Services or through our leaflet ‘Your 
Choice, Your Voice’.

Page 6



Area Planning Subcommittee South 2017-18 
Members of the Committee and Wards Represented: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Cllr Chambers 
Buckhurst Hill 

West 

Vice-Chairman 

Cllr Patel 
Buckhurst Hill 

West 

Cllr Baldwin 
Loughton 

Forest 

Cllr Beales 
Loughton 

Forest 

Cllr Chana 
Grange Hill 

 

Cllr Heap 
Buckhurst Hill 

East 
 

Cllr B Jennings 
Loughton St 

John’s 

Cllr J Jennings 
Loughton St 

Mary’s 
John’s 

 

Cllr Kauffman 
Loughton St 

Mary’s 
 

Cllr Knapman 
Chigwell 
Village 

 

Cllr Lion 
Grange Hill 

 

Cllr Mead 
Loughton 
Fairmead 

 

Cllr 
Mohindra 

Grange Hill 

 

Cllr Neville 
Buckhurst Hill 

East 
 

Cllr C P Pond 
Loughton St 

John’s 
 

Cllr C Roberts 
Loughton 
Alderton 

 

Cllr Sandler 
Chigwell Row 

 

Cllr Sunger 
Chigwell 
Village 

 

Cllr Wixley 
Loughton 
Fairmead 

 

Cllr D Roberts 
Loughton 
Alderton 

 

Cllr C C Pond 
Loughton 
Broadway 

 

Page 7

http://haako/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=948


This page is intentionally left blank



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH

25 April 2018

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION

PAGE

1. EPF/0319/18 52 & 54 Palmerston Road
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
IG9 5LH

Grant Permission 10

2. EPF/2758/17 12 High Elms
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 6NF

Grant Permission 16

3. EPF/3177/17 105 Manor Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5PN

Grant Permission 

(Subject to Legal 

Agreement)

24

4. EPF/3210/17 Former Delivery Office
256 High Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1RB

Grant Permission 

(Subject to Legal 

Agreement)

34

5. EPF/0201/18 1 Brook Parade
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 6PD

Grant Permission 48

6. EPF/0206/18 25 Felstead Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3BB

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions) 52

7. EPF/0330/18 157 Manor Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5QA

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)
58

8. EPF/0336/18 Greenacres
Vicarage Lane
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 6LS

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)
64

9. EPF/0353/18 71 Roundmead Avenue
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1PZ

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)
70

10. EPF/0523/18 12 Eleven Acre Rise
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1AN

Grant Permission
76

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



123

 

63.1m64.6m
58.8m

70.4m

65.5m

67d

Court

El Sub Sta

11
 to

 1
7

Rayburne

1 to 6

67a

67f

107
109

Sub
Sta

El

105

73
69

7175a
77b79a

9

75b 73b

11

81a 81

40 38a

12

8
5

9

1

67e

1 to 6

Court

7 to 10

81

Ibrox

32

67b
67c

4 to 6

46

Palmerston

44

1 to 3

Court

77
75

77a
73a

44

65 73

797775
67

56

121

121b

123

El
Sub Sta

123b

123a

83 79

42

Buckhurst Hill Community Centre

12512
9a131 129

61

56b

1

56a

7

58

83a

5262

2

1 to 15

Court

1 to 8

Mirravale

135

49

76

70

53

El Sub Sta

89

Glenmead

72

74

2a

1 to 966

Westbury Court

64a

64c

160a

149
149a

162
160

143

1 to 7

147
147a

Flats

68

The Daiglen
School

W
ES

TB
U

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

PALMERSTON ROAD

QUEEN'S ROAD

ANDREWS CLOSE

WESTBURY LANE

LB

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 1

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0319/18
Site Name: 52 & 54 Palmerston Road, 

Buckhurst Hill, IG9 5LH
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 10



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/0319/18

SITE ADDRESS: 52 & 54 Palmerston Road
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
IG9 5LH

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West

APPLICANT: Mrs Charlotte Cheeseman & Mrs Angi Lewis

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Retaining wall and fencing to front and proposed parking bays and 
new crossovers for nos 52 and 54.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=605478

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)

Description of Site:

The application site comprises of a pair of two, two-storey semi-detached dwellings built on a 
generous plot on Palmerston Road, Buckhurst Hill. Palmerston Road itself is an extensive road 
with a variety of dwelling types. There is no uniform architectural style or character along this 
street. Buckhurst Hill Underground Station is in close proximity to the site as well as frequent local 
bus services to Loughton and other destinations.

The application dwellings at 52 and 54 Palmerston Road have small frontages but deep rear 
gardens. Neighbouring dwellings and buildings also have small frontages. This is the norm along 
this stretch of Palmerston Road.  The application site currently does not benefit from off street 
parking. Buckhurst Hill has parking restrictions in place in the form of a controlled parking zone. 

Page 11

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=605478


Adjoining neighbouring dwellings benefit from off street parking. There are further examples of off 
street parking along this street, it is therefore not uncommon.

There are a number of different boundary treatments along this stretch of Palmerston Road. These 
range from approximately 0.5m to 2.5m in height and are of a soft nature i.e. hedging or more solid 
boundary treatment in the form of railings and timber fencing.

A number of dwellings and buildings along this street have benefitted from significant alterations 
and extensions over the years.

The site is not within a Conservation Area nor are the application dwellings Listed.  There are no 
preserved trees at the application site.

Description of Proposal: 

It is proposed construct a pair of off-street parking spaces and a shared pedestrian access for 
each of the houses, carrying out an associated reduction in land levels in the front garden, 
demolition of existing retaining walls and construction of new retaining walls up to 900mm high 
around the parking area, construction of steps and formation of associated vehicular crossovers.  
A 1.1m high timber picket fence would be erected on top of the retaining wall adjacent to the 
houses.  A tree in the front garden of 54 would be removed to allow for the development.

Relevant History:

None

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
DBE10 Design of Residential Extensions
ST4                 Road Safety

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017:

The Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017 has been approved for 
publication and is the Plan the Council intend to submit for independent examination. The policies 
in the Plan are considered to be up to date and accord with national policy and therefore should be 
given substantial weight in the consideration of planning applications in accordance with the 
Council’s decision on 14 December 2017 and paragraph 217 of the NPPF. The policies and the 
Plan are supported by up to date and robust evidence – the evidence should also be treated as a 
material consideration. The relevant policies in the context of the proposed development are:

DM9 High Quality Design
T2                   Safeguarding of routes 

Page 12



Summary of Representations Received  

6 Neighbours consulted:

No representations received from neighbours.

BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL OBJECTED to the proposal on the following grounds:

 Design of railings out of keeping with façade of existing buildings.

Officer comment:  Plans have been amended showing timber fencing in place of the railings that 
were originally proposed. The design of the proposal is discussed in the main body of this report. 

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issues with this application relate to design, highway considerations and impact on 
amenity 

Design

The proposed boundary treatment adjacent to the houses would be 2m in height including the 
height of the retaining wall. The timber boarded fence would be 1.1m high which is only 0.1m 
higher than what could be achieved under permitted development. 

Whilst the height of the boundary treatment would be 2m overall, given the height of the 
application dwellings and their width as well as the 5.5m set back of the proposed boundary 
treatment, the proposed boundary treatment would not appear incongruous or out of character 
when viewed from the general street scene.

The proposed crossovers would not appear out of character given the presence of crossovers 
nearby the site.

Living Conditions of neighbours

The proposal by reason of its nature and siting would not result in excessive harm to neighbour 
amenity.

Highway Safety

The County Council as Highway Authority was consulted on the proposal and they have no 
objections to the development.  The proposed crossovers require the approval of the Local 
Planning Authority as Palmerston Road is a classified road. Approval to implement the proposed 
vehicular access is still required from the Highway Authority and a separate application would 
need to be lodged to them in the event of approval of this planning application. 

Conclusion:

The proposal is of a design, siting and appearance that would complement the existing dwellings 
and would not harm the living conditions of neighbours due to its size and scale.  Amendments to 
the proposal have been secured to address the Parish Council’s objection.  It is therefore 
recommended that planning permission be granted.

Page 13



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Sukhdeep Jhooti
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564298

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 14



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 15



123

 

75.9m

83.8m

81.1m

70.1m

Def

RH

Def

RH

Ward Bdy

CR

EER, Boro Const, G
L Asly Const & LB Bdy

FF

House

12
14 to 21

Lodge
The

22 to 41

Forest House

The Bowls

El
Sub Sta

7

1

11

13

12

16

18

Sub Sta
El

245

251
249

2

15

Fields

The Cottage

The Mews

1

Forest

2

VICARAGE LANE

HIGH ELMS

GP

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 2

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2758/17
Site Name: 12 High Elms, Chigwell, IG7 6NF

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 16



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/2758/17

SITE ADDRESS: 12 High Elms
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 6NF

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Grange Hill

APPLICANT: Mr Colin Medley

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing bungalow and replacement with 2 no. two 
storey dwellings with basements.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission 

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=601074

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes of the 
development, including windows and doors, and finishes to be used on boundary 
enclosures and driveways, have been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority, in writing. The development shall be implemented in accordance 
with such approved details.

3 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 

Page 17

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=601074


finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

5 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

6 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tool. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion 
of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the 
management and maintenance plan.

7 Details of measures to deal with surface water drainage shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority before any work commences on site. 
Once approved these details shall be subsequently implemented in full on the site.

8 An electric vehicle charging point shall be provided for each of the approved 
dwellings prior to first occupation. 

9 Prior to first occupation measures shall be incorporated within the development to 
ensure a water efficiency standard of 110 litres (or less) per person per day.

10 Prior to first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved measures to improve the 
ecological value of the site shall be implemented in accordance with details that 
have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

11 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate

Page 18



5. Measures to control the emission of noise, dust and dirt during excavation and 
construction, including wheel washing.
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works.
7. Details of how construction of the basement will be undertaken without adversely 
affecting the roots of nearby trees and the stability of the boundary wall around the 
plot. 

12 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings numbered P-07 B; P-08; P-06 F; P-03 F, P-04 E;  P-01 C; P-02 
D; P-05 D.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation for approval is contrary to 
three or more objections received, which are material to the planning merits of the proposal, 
(pursuant to the constitution, part three:scheme of delegation, appendix 3.). 

Description of Site:

A single storey dwelling located in a residential cul de sac leading out on to Manor Road near its 
junction with Vicarage Lane.  The property is not listed nor does it lie in a Conservation area.  It 
does however lie next to the boundary wall and gardens of listed mansion at Forest House. 
 
Description of Proposal:

Demolition of existing bungalow and replacement with 2 detached two storey dwellings with 
basements.  

Relevant History:

While there is no relevant history of planning applications on this property there have been long 
standing negotiations conducted in the last two years on two pre application proposals - the first of 
which was submitted in August 2016. Initially 4 houses were proposed, then 3, and the current 
application proposes two dwellings. 

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
CP3 – New development
HC12 – Development affecting the setting of Listed Buildings.
DBE1 – Design of new buildings.
DBE9 – Loss of amenity.
ST6  - Vehicle parking.

NPPF:
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Page 19



Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017:

The Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017 has been approved for 
publication and is the Plan the Council intend to submit for independent examination. The policies 
in the Plan are considered to be up to date and accord with national policy and therefore should be 
given substantial weight in the consideration of planning applications in accordance with the 
Council’s decision on 14 December 2017 and paragraph 217 of the NPPF. The policies and the 
Plan are supported by up to date and robust evidence – the evidence should also be treated as a 
material consideration. The relevant policies in the context of the proposed development are:

SP1 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
T1  -   Sustainable Transport Choices
H1 – Housing mix and accommodation types
DM7 - Heritage Assets
DM9 - High Quality Design
DM10 - Housing Design and Quality
DM12 – Subterranean, basement development and lightwells.
 
Summary of Representations:

CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL – No objections to this application.
 
NEIGHBOURS – 15 neighbours notified on the amended plans 9 objections have been received 
from nos. 4,8, 9, 7, 16,13, 2 and 5 High Elms and one from a trustee of Forest House. Most of 
these respondents occupy 3 storey town houses that lie on the opposite side of High Elms, and 
the following objections have been received:- 

1. The plot is too small and this is an overdevelopment of the existing bungalow
2. The proposal would detract from visual amenity in the street scene,
3. The proposal would remove the green verge around the existing bungalow
4. The proposal would create a mis match of houses and a sense of enclosure
5. The increased ridge height would detract from our outlook over Forest House and its 

gardens
6. The proposal will cause overlooking and loss of privacy to our properties
7. The proposal will aggravate on street parking problems
8. extensive basement excavation may cause subsidence on a sloping site built on clay, and 

may affect drainage and ground water flow.
9. There is no turning facility
10. The proposal will reduce sunlight to our homes
11. The bungalow was built to respect the boundary wall and setting of the listed Forest House 

whereas a two storey development will be intrusive.

EFDC CONSERVATION - The proposal site is located within the setting of the grade II listed 
Forest House, an early 19th century stock brick house. The revised scheme has overcome the 
concerns we previously had and now meets our expectations in terms of design and 
conservation. The proposed replacement houses are not exceeding two storeys and are nicely 
recessed from the walled garden which will make them invisible when viewed from the listed 
building grounds. In addition, their overall design, featuring Georgian features, will make them 
blend in with neighbouring developments.    This application is, therefore, recommended for 
approval with the following conditions:
- Photographic details of the external materials (including doors and windows) should be 

submitted to and approved by the LPA prior to the commencements of any works.
- Details of the surfacing and means of enclosure should be submitted to and approved by the 

LPA prior to the commencements of any works.

Page 20



EFDC LAND DRAINAGE SECTION – No objection in principle. The development is of a size 
where it is necessary to avoid generating additional runoff and the opportunity of new development 
should be taken to improve existing surface water runoff. A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) is 
required; therefore please add land drainage condition SCN85A, along with a condition requiring 
approval of surface water details.

EFDC TREES SECTION – The applicant has provided a tree report and we have no objections 
subject to conditions concerning tree protection details, provision of details of hard and soft 
landscaping, and requirements for dealing with excavated material.

Issues and Considerations:

The plans originally submitted with this application showed two 2 storey houses positioned on a 
north – south axis.  This layout meant that the side of the house on the western side of the plot, 
together with some high sections of side boundary walls, would have lied opposite the front 
elevations of modern 3 storey town houses on the opposite side of High Elms, and this side façade 
would have detracted from the street scene and from the approach to the gated entrance to the 
adjoining listed Forest House and its grounds.  In addition, the eastern house on the site would 
have lied just one to two metres away from the boundary wall with the grounds of Forest House, 
and it would have been an overly conspicuous and intrusive development when viewed from 
Forest House and its main front garden.  Following negotiations therefore the proposed two 
houses have been ‘spun round’ onto an east west axis and now the front elevations face the front 
of houses on the opposite side of High Elms.  This arrangement improves the appearance of the 
proposal in the street scene.  It also means that the two houses are located a lot further away from 
the boundary wall with the listed Forest House on the east side of the plot, and this factor, together 
with a reduction in the size of the first floor accommodation, means that the amended proposal has 
a far more respectful relationship with the listed Forest House, and its grounds and boundary wall.  
The design of the two houses has also been revised on the amended plans received.  The houses 
now have a mock Georgian appearance built of brick with low roofs and now have a more 
acceptable appearance in this locality.  As a result of these changes to the proposal the 
Conservation Officer has now withdrawn objections she made on previous proposals for this site, 
and her comments are set out above.

The relocation and reorientation of the houses away from the listed Forest House partly means 
that the fronts of the proposed two houses lie just 18m away from the fronts of the town houses 
opposite at nos. 8 to 11 High Elms.  Objections have been received from some of the occupants of 
these houses on grounds of overlooking and loss of outlook.  While a distance of 21m between 
front elevations is desirable an 18m distance between the fronts of houses is not uncommon in the 
District, and certainly in the London area, and it would not result in a significant loss of privacy that 
would justify a refusal of consent.

A car lift is proposed for each house to give access to a basement area providing two off street car 
spaces for each house, and also providing a small swimming pool and changing rooms for each 
dwelling.  Provision for off street car parking is therefore acceptable.  The size of the proposed 
basement is significant and has led to concerns about possible impact on roots of trees and the 
boundary wall around Forest House.  To this end however appendix 7 of the submitted 
Arboricultural Tree Report provides details of protection of the boundary wall and tree roots, and 
there are no neighbouring buildings or houses that adjoin or lie close that could be affected by 
excavation.

Development of this site has been subject of protracted negotiations for over 18 months.  However 
the proposal does result in the loss of an existing bungalow which can be seen as contrary to the 
recently approved LPSV.  Set against this is the fact that an additional dwelling is being achieved 

Page 21



from the development, and it would be unreasonable and somewhat harsh to insist that the 
bungalow be retained after 18 months of negotiation on proposals to build houses on this site.

The existing bungalow on the site has an attractive unenclosed green verge on its two roadside 
boundaries. The green verge however lies in the application site, and although its loss is 
unfortunate the revised and improved design of the proposal, plus the additional house being 
provided, does provide a more than compensatory benefit.

Conclusion:

For the reasons set out in the report above it is recommended that conditional planning permission 
be granted. 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

Page 22



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 23



123

 

69.2m

66.4m

68.0m

70.1m

Und

W
ard Bdy

FF
RH

FF

RH

FW

FF

1 to 14

Burney

1 to 5

Court

William Court

109 to 111

25
9

25
7

1

404

414

105

28
1

27
1

410

Sherrell House

1

9

128

(Residential Nursery)

Oranmore

Silverhind Court

1 to 14

1 to 4

El Sub Sta

Court

101

95

Manor

6 to 10

1 to 20

5

Montpellier
House

120

Regency Apartments

1 to 5

MANOR ROAD

LINKSIDE

MANOR ROAD
FEN

C
EPIEC

E R
O

A
D

GP

Allotment Gardens

Posts
LB

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 3

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/3177/17
Site Name: 105 Manor Road, Chigwell, IG7 5PN

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 24



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/3177/17

SITE ADDRESS: 105 Manor Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5PN

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Grange Hill

APPLICANT: Chigwell Limited

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed demolition of existing property and erection of a 
development of 3 no. 2 bed flats and 1 no. 1 bed flat including car 
parking.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=602734

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: Location Plan, MIEF/17/01A, MIEF/17/02, MIEF/17/03A, 
MIEF/17/04A MIEF/17/05A, MIEF/17/06

3 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in the southern flank elevation shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass 
and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which 
the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

4 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

5 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

Page 25

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=602734


6 Prior to the first occupation of the development the access arrangements, vehicle 
parking and turning areas as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, 
hard surfaced, sealed and marked out. The access, parking, car lift and turning 
areas shall be retained in perpetuity for their intended purpose.

7 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision and implementation, per dwelling, of a Residential 
Travel Information Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County 
Council, to include six one day travel vouchers for use with the relevant local public 
transport operator.

8 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

9 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.  

Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works.

Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered.

10 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

Page 26



11 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

12 An electric vehicle charging point shall be provided for each of the approved 
dwellings prior to first occupation 

13 Prior to first occupation measures shall be incorporated within the development to 
ensure a water efficiency standard of 110 litres (or less) per person per day.

14 Prior to first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved measures to improve the 
ecological value of the site shall be implemented in accordance with details that 
have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

And subject to the completion, by Friday 10 August 2018, of a S106 Legal agreement to 
secure appropriate financial contributions for the management and monitoring of visitors 
to the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site:

The application site currently comprises a two storey detached house and curtilage located at the 
corner of the southern side o Manor Road and the western side Fencepiece Road.  It covers an 
area of 365 square metres. 

The existing building on the site has its frontage onto to Manor Road and has a building line which 
is set back (west) from its neighbour at 281 Fencepiece Road by a distance of approximately 1m.  
Land to the west of the site contains a 4 storey flatted development named ‘Manor Court’ which 
has a maximum height of 15.4m  To the east on the other side of Fencepiece Road is ‘Sherrell 
House’ which is a 3 storey building used for sheltered accommodation for the elderly.  To the north 
of the site and on the other side of Manor Road is a petrol station; however the predominant 
character of the surrounding area is residential. 

The site is in an urban area.  The building is not listed and the locality is not within a conservation 
area.

Page 27



Description of Proposal: 

Permission is sought for the demolition of the existing property and erection of a development of 3, 
two bedroom flats and 1, one bedroom flat.

The building measures a maximum of 16.2m deep by 10m wide. Due to the varying land levels on 
the site, the proposal has maximum height of 9.2m on Fencepiece Road and 9.8m high to the 
ridge roof facing Manor Road.

Materials include clay or concrete tiles for the roof, painted render and facing brickwork for the 
walls, UPVC framed fenestration, brick walls and concrete paviours for the hard standing area.

1 car parking space is proposed for each flat.

A total area of approximately 82 sqm is provided as garden amenity space for the two ground floor 
flats, the two bedroom flat (flat C) has a balcony of over 6 sqm and the one bedroom flat has a 
balcony area of just under 5 sqm. 

A bin store and cycle storage area for 8 bikes is located close to the northern boundary of the site.

Relevant History:

Planning permission was refused under reference EPF/0653/16 for Demolition of the existing 2 no. 
detached dwellings and the redevelopment of the site to provide 11 no. flats within a part 2, part 3 
and part 4 storey building with associated basement car/cycle parking and landscaping. The 
grounds for refusal were 

1. By reason of its height, bulk, siting on high ground and projection beyond of the rear wall of 
the house at 279 Fencepiece Road, the proposed building would appear excessively over-
dominant in relation to 277 and 279 Fencepiece Road and would appear excessively 
overbearing when seen from the rear gardens of those houses.  As a consequence the 
building would amount to an over-development of the site that is harmful the street scene 
of this part of Fencepiece Road, to the detriment of the character and appearance of the 
locality.  It would also cause significant harm to the amenities of the occupants of 
neighbouring dwellings to the south of the site, particularly those of 277 and 279 
Fencepiece Road.  The proposal is therefore contrary to Local Plan and Alterations policies 
CP2(iv), CP7, DBE1, DBE2 and DBE9, which are consistent with the National Planning 
Policy Framework.

2. By reason of a significant under-provision of off-street parking spaces, well below the 
minimum specified for new residential development in the Essex County Council "Parking 
Standards: Design and Good Practice Guide" 2009, and by reason of the intensification of 
vehicles accessing the site adjacent to the junction of Fencepiece Road, Manor Road and 
Hainault Road, the proposal is likely to create conditions prejudicial to the interests of 
highway safety and to the efficiency of the junction.  The proposal is therefore contrary to 
Local Plan and Alterations policies ST4(ii & iii) and ST6, which are consistent with the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

The application was then dismissed at appeal on the ground that it would lead to substantial harm 
to the living conditions of existing neighbouring occupiers. However the Inspector also surmised 
that the proposal would not have harmed the character and appearance of the area or highway 
safety.

Page 28



Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
CP3 – New Development
CP5 – Sustainable Building
CP6 – Achieving sustainable urban development patterns
CP7 – Urban Form and Quality
DBE1 –  Design of New Buildings
DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties`
DBE3 – Design in Urban Areas
DBE8 Private Amenity Space
DBE9 Neighbouring Amenity
ST1 – Location of Development
ST4 – Road Safety
ST6 – Vehicle Parking
H2A – Previously Developed Land
H4A – Dwelling Mix
LL10 – Adequacy of provision for landscape retention
LL11 –  Landscaping schemes 
RP4  Contaminated land
U3B Sustainable Drainage Systems 
NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Epping Forest District Local Plan Submission Version 2017

The Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017 has been approved for 
publication and is the Plan the Council intend to submit for independent examination.  The policies 
in the Plan are considered to be up to date and accord with national policy and therefore should be 
given substantial weight in the consideration of planning applications in accordance with the 
Council’s decision on 14 December 2017 and paragraph 217 of the NPPF.  The policies and the 
Plan are supported by up to date and robust evidence – the evidence should also be treated as a 
material consideration.  The relevant policies in the context of the proposed development are:

SP1  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
SP2 Spatial Development Strategy 2011-2033
SP3 Place Shaping
SP4 Place Shaping
H1  Housing mix and accommodation types
T1  Sustainable transport choices
DM9 High quality design
DM10  Housing design and quality
DM 11 Waste recycling facilities on new developments
DM16 Sustainable drainage systems
DM18  On site management of waste water and water supply
DM21  Local environmental impacts, pollution and land contamination
P7 Chigwell

Page 29



Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted:  10
Site notice posted: Yes
Responses received: No response received from neighbours 

CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL:  OBJECTS to this application because the proposed structure 
would be an over-development of the site and thoroughly inappropriate. Additionally the suggested 
access is sited excessively close to the traffic lights.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The key considerations for the determination of this application are:-

 The principle of the development;
 Impact on the character and appearance of the site and surrounding area.
 Impact on the living conditions of surrounding residents;
 Quality of resulting residential accommodation; and
 Impact on parking provision and highway safety.

Principle 

In terms of planning policy, the site is considered as previously developed land, and in line with 
Government policy redevelopment of this land is encouraged.  The lawful use of the site is also 
residential.  

The site has also been identified within the Epping Forest Local Plan Submission Version (2017) 
under policy P7 as being within a location which is suitable for residential development.  This 
measure is being undertaken in order to provide more housing to meet the requirements of SP2 of 
this document. 

The Submission Version Plan is in the advanced stages of preparation and is consistent with 
NPPF. It is therefore considered to hold considerable weight in any future determinations of 
planning applications which are submitted in relation to the area defined as site CHIG.R8 (which 
also includes 281 Fencepiece Road as the southern half of the allocation).  CHIG.R8 allocation 
envisages 6 dwellings on the site as a whole.  The provision of 4 dwellings on the northern half of 
the allocation, as proposed in this application, would not prejudice achieving 2 dwellings on the 
southern half of the CHIG.R8.

The principle of the development is therefore acceptable.

The site specific requirements of CHIG.R8  are:

Ecology

Development proposals will be required to make a financial contribution to access management 
and monitoring of visitors to the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation.  Such contributions 
will be in accordance with the measures identified in the Action Plan developed and agreed by 
Natural England.

Page 30



On- Site Constraints

The site has potential access constraints. As a result of the proximity of the site to the Manor Road 
/ Fencepiece Road / Hainault Road crossroads, vehicular access to the site should be limited to 
Manor Road to be upgraded /widened as part of the development in order to ensure a safe access 
point which has sufficient capacity for the development it serves.

As set out in Policy DM 2 and DM 22 of the emerging Local Plan, issues have been identified with 
respect to the effect of development on the integrity of the SAC as a result of increased visitor 
pressure arising from new residential development, and from relatively poor local air quality 
alongside the roads that traverse the SAC.  The Council is currently developing with partners an 
interim strategy for the management and monitoring of visitor pressures on the SAC.  This will 
include measures to be funded through the securing of financial contributions from new 
development in accordance with Policy DM 2.  Notwithstanding the fact that this work is yet to be 
completed the applicant has confirmed willingness to enter into a S106 agreement and recognises 
that the level of contribution is to be agreed after the committee.

The Highways Authority are satisfied that given the number of units being provided and the 
submission of amended plans indicating a wider access to accommodate the use, further 
contributions to access improvements are not required.

Housing Density

The proposal has a density of 109 units per hectare. This density is higher than neighbouring 
single household dwellings, however since the location of the site is close to sustainable modes of 
transport and local amenities and complies with the other technical standards within the Local 
Plan, it remains consistent with requirements of policies CP1, CP3 and H3A of the Local Plan and 
with paragraph 47 of the NPPF which seeks to boost significantly the supply of housing.

Dwelling mix

The 3, two bedroom and 1 one bedroom flats are considered suitable for smaller households, the 
proposal would therefore meet an existing housing need within the borough in line with the 
requirements of policy H4A of the Local Plan.

Character and appearance

The application site is surrounded by flatted developments to the west (Manor Court, to the north 
(Montpellier Court and Silverhind Court and to the east (Sherill House etc.).  

The land on Fencepiece Road rises in a northerly direction. Number 281 Fencepiece Road has a 
maximum height of 9m to the ridge of its hipped roof and the proposed flats will have a maximum 
height of 9.2m on this elevation.  Given the 4 storey height of Manor Court which would also be 
visible when viewing the proposal from this road; along with the 2m gap between the building line 
of this neighbouring property and the building line of the proposed new building; the general size 
and appearance of the built form surrounding the site and the lack of objections raised by the 
Inspector in his dismissal of EPF/653/16 on the grounds of size, position massing in relation to it 
impact on the character and appearance of this area, Officers conclude that the height size, 
design, position and materials of the building is compatible with the character and appearance of 
the locality within which it is situated.  As a result the proposal will preserve its distinctive local 
character in accordance with chapter 7 of the NPPF and policies DBE1 and DBE 3 of the Local 
Plan.

Quality of resulting residential accommodation.

Page 31



Whilst it is noted that flats A, B and C have second bedrooms which have a poor outlook as they 
face the side flank wall of 281 Fencepiece Road, it is considered that since the rooms would 
predominantly be used during the darker periods of the day that arrangement is not unacceptable.  
Moreover, it would be the choice of the future occupier to reside within these flats. 

The proposed self-contained units have an adequate internal size, layout and ventilation.  The 
proposal is therefore consistent with the requirements of the Essex Design Guide.  Provision of 
amenity space also complies with the requirements of policy DBE8 of the Local Plan.

Living conditions of neighbouring residential dwellings

Number 281 Fencepiece Road is south of the application site and plans indicate that the 45 
degree light guidelines will not be breached.  This proposal has been significantly reduced from 
the previously dismissed appeal under reference EPF/0653/16.  The proposal now extends 2.6m 
beyond the rear elevation of 281 Fencepiece Road.  This depth is mitigated by the 2m gap 
between the two buildings. There is then a further 2.4m deep two storey projection centrally 
located within the rear elevation of the building.  This projection is 4m away from the mutual 
boundary with this neighbour.  These distances between the building lines of both the proposal 
and neighbouring building are sufficient to ensure that the loss of outlook to number 281 
Fencepiece Road will not be excessive.

Plans have also been revised to show flat C’s second bedroom window within the first floor 
southern flank wall has been obscure glazed to a height of 1.7m and the bathroom window on this 
elevation serving flat D is also to be fully obscure glazed to prevent loss of privacy for the 
occupiers of 281 Fencepiece Road.  Due to the change in levels between the application site and 
281 Fencepiece Road it is also necessary to ensure 2 ground floor flank windows serving the 
second bedrooms of flats A and B are also obscure glazed.  The loss of outlook from the bedroom 
windows would not result in poor living conditions in this case since they would otherwise look onto 
the flank of 281 across a very short distance.  It is therefore considered reasonable as well as 
necessary to require all 4 flank windows to be obscure glazed by way of a planning condition.

On the basis of the above assessment it is concluded that 281 Fencepiece Road will not be 
excessively affected in terms of loss of light, outlook or privacy. 

The windows on the side flank of Manor Court serve a stairwell and this neighbour is positioned 
13.4m away from the development. It is therefore considered that occupiers of this neighbouring 
dwelling will not be unduly affected in terms of loss of light, outlook or privacy.  All other residential 
neighbours are sufficiently distant to ensure that they are not materially affected.  The proposal 
therefore complies with the requirements of policy DBE 9 of the Local Plan. 

Highways 

The site is located close to good public transport links, amenities and therefore 4 parking spaces 
are considered adequate for the number of flats.  Plans have also been amended during the 
application process to show the width of the existing access has been widened to 5m at the 
request of the Highway Authority.  Given that an access already exists in this position and the 
distance of the traffic lights, the Highway Authority is satisfied that,subject to conditions, the 
proposal would not cause undue highway or parking concerns.  The proposal therefore accords 
with the requirements of ST4 and ST6 of the Local Plan.

Flood Risk and Land Drainage 

The site falls outside of a flood risk area.  The applicant is proposing to dispose of surface water 
by the main sewer.  The Land Drainage Team recommends that the opportunity of new 
development should be taken to further reduce the runoff entering the main sewer by incorporating 

Page 32



sustainable drainage systems in to the drainage design.  They therefore recommend further details 
be submitted and approved to ensure that adequate drainage is provided in accordance with policy 
CP2 of the Local Plan. 

Contaminated Land

The Contaminated Land team consider the risk of the site being contaminated as being low and 
therefore only request that a condition be imposed relating to unexpected contamination  in 
accordance with paragraph 109 of the NPPF and RP4 of the Local Plan.

Conclusion:

The proposal will provide much needed housing which is of a type which meets an existing local 
housing need within an urban and sustainable location.  The Highway Authority is satisfied that the 
proposal will not excessively impact highway safety or parking provision within the area. Impact on 
the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers will not be excessively more harmful than the 
existing situation.  The design of the new housing will preserve the character and appearance of 
this area. Additional conditions are also recommended to ensure that the proposal does not 
increase drainage issues within the area.  It is therefore considered that the proposal meets the 
requirements of sustainable development in accordance with policy contained within the NPPF.  
Approval is therefore recommended subject to conditions.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Sukhi Dhadwar 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564597

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 33



123

 

34.7m

34.4m

33.2m

33.2m

34.4m

1

311

309

3

305

9

301

4

289 287 285

295
291

31
 3

2

9 
10

 1
3 

14

28
4

1

26
8

1 to 12

26
4

Go
vt 

Of
fic

es

29
 3

0
Br

oo
kly

n 
Co

ur
t

7 
8 

15

16

283 281 279

5 
6 

17
 1

8
27

 2
8

3
2

25
8

Di
gg

en
s C

t

8

1

6
5

9

a

c

244b

25
2

24
2

25
2

a

Office

Hall

Methodist
Loughton

Sorting

Church

25
6

11
 1

2

St
 E

dm
un

d's

Presby

33

Swimming Baths

RC
 C

hu
rc

h

4

7

26
2

27
6

23
4

23
6 

to
 2

40

261
265 263

24
4

23
 2

4

271 269 267

277 275 273

1 
2 

21
 2

2

3 
4 

19
 2

0

24
4

b25
2

24
6 

to
 2

50

23
0

23
2

4

Health Centre

14

27

29

24

Va
nr

yn
e 

Ho
us

e

48

42

19

25
2

El Sub Sta

Sub Sta

62

53

7

El

64

58

13

H
IG

H
 R

O
AD

K
IN

G
'S

 G
R

EE
N

CHURCH H
IL

L

HABGOOD ROAD

THE DRIVE

GOULD'S ALLEY

GP

LB

Car Park

Memorial

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 4

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/3210/17
Site Name: Former Delivery Office, 256 High 

Road, Loughton, IG10 1RB
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 34



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/3210/17

SITE ADDRESS: Former Delivery Office
256 High Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1RB

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Marys

APPLICANT: Loughton High Road (256) Limited

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing buildings and construction of 29 retirement 
apartments in a single building of 3, 4 and 5 storeys in height, 
alongside associated access, amenity space, landscaping and 
parking

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=602833

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 866-PL- 01B, 02A, 03A, 04D, 05C, 06F, 07F, 08F, 09F, 
10F, 11D 12E, 13E, 14C, 15C

3 No development shall take place until details of surface water drainage have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

4 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

5 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

Page 35

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=602833


6 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

7 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing.
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works.

8 Prior to the commencement of any works a method statement for before, during and 
post construction shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This should cover precautionary methods to avoid any potential 
impacts on bats and birds.

9 A biodiversity enhancement statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority approval prior to commencement of works. This 
should include bird and bat boxes and native planting. 

10 No development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried 
out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

11 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 

Page 36



submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]

12 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

13 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

14 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the flood risk assessment 
(Former Delivery Office Flood Risk Assessment Final Report v1.1, Ref 
3932/FRA/Final/v1.1/2017-11-24) and drainage strategy submitted with the 
application unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

15 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 

Page 37



as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

16 The tree protection, methodology for construction adjacent to trees and Arb site 
supervision shall be undertaken in accordance with the submitted Tree Survey/ 
Arboricultural Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its prior 
written approval to any alterations. Tree protection shall be implemented as shown 
on Skilled Ecology Consultancy Ltd Tree Protection Plan drawing number 18-03revF 
dated September 2017.

17 Notwithstanding the proposed parking layout as shown on drawings 866-PL-11D 
and 866-PL-06F, a full layout of parking shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of works 

18 An electric vehicle charging point shall be provided for each of the proposed parking 
spaces prior to first occupation.

19 Prior to first occupation measures shall be incorporated within the development to 
ensure a water efficiency standard of 110 litres (or less) per person per day.

And subject to the completion of a S106 Legal agreement to secure appropriate financial 
contributions for the management and monitoring of visitors to the Epping Forest Special 
Area of Conservation. The Section 106 will also secure the implementation of a car pool / 
car share for the development. This agreement shall be completed no later than Friday 10th 
August 2018

This application is before this Committee since it is an application for residential development 
consisting of 5 dwellings or more (unless approval of reserved matters only) and is recommended 
for approval (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council 
functions, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(d))

This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than four objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – 
Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).)

Description of site

The former Loughton delivery office is located within the High Road in the built up area of 
Loughton.  The existing building is set back approximately 40m from the High Road and is only 
visible from views directly in front of the existing access. The delivery office is now vacant as Royal 
Mail operations have been moved into Woodford and nearby Langston Road.  A large Morrisons 

Page 38



supermarket is located to the south of the site and its associated car parking area is located to the 
west.  To the north there is a hall which is used for purposes ancillary to the Loughton Methodist 
Church located on the High Road.  Towards the east, there are a number of two and three storey 
buildings which have business units on the ground floor and residential units above.  There are 
vacant office units above the Olive Tree restaurant.  Prior approval was recently granted for their 
change of use to residential, although this scheme has not yet been implemented.  To the south of 
the Olive Tree, above Hetheringtons are various first floor dwellings, the entrances of which are on 
a first floor shared terrace area on the rear elevation.  The application site is not located within the 
boundaries of the Metropolitan Green Belt and it is not in a conservation area. 

Description of proposal

The proposed development is to demolish the existing building currently on the site and to 
construct 29 retirement apartments in a single building of 3, 4 and 5 storeys in height with 
associated amenity space, landscaping and parking. 

Relevant History

EPF/1545/16 - Demolition of the existing structures. Comprehensive residential development 
including the provision of amenity areas, secure cycle parking, car parking, refuse and recycling 
areas, landscaping, access and other associated development – Refused on design grounds and 
on the basis of causing harm to the amenities of the neighbouring Methodist Church and flats 
adjacent to the Church.

Policies Applied
 
CP1 – Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
CP3 – New Development
CP4 – Energy Conservation
CP5 – Sustainable Building 
CP6 – Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns
CP7 – Urban Form and Quality
DBE1 – Design of New Buildings
DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties
DBE3 - Design in Urban Areas
DBE6 – Car Parking in New Development
DBE8 – Private Amenity Space
DBE9 – Loss of Amenity to Neighbouring Properties
ST1 – Location of Development
ST2 – Accessibility of Development 
ST4 – Road Safety
ST6 – Vehicle Parking
H2A – Previously Developed Land
H3A – Housing Density
H4A – Dwelling Mix
LL11 – Landscaping Schemes
H6A – Thresholds for affordable housing
H7A – Levels of affordable housing

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to the relevant policies in existing 
plans according to the degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight

Page 39



Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017:

The Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017 was approved for publication 
and for submission to the Secretary of State for independent examination by an Extraordinary Full 
Council meeting on 14 December 2017.  At the same meeting the Council also resolved to 
approve the Plan as a material consideration in decision-making. The policies in the Plan are 
considered to be up to date and in accordance with national policy and therefore should be given 
significant  weight in the determination of planning applications as set out in the Council’s Planning 
Policy Briefing Note (March 2018) and having had regard to paragraph 216 of the NPPF. The 
policies and the Plan are supported by up to date and robust evidence – the evidence should also 
be treated as a material consideration. The relevant policies in the context of the proposed 
development are:

P2 – Loughton (Allocated Sites)
SP1 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
SP6 – Green Belt and District Open Land
SP7 - The Natural Environment, Landscape Character and Green and Blue Infrastructure
DM1 – Habitat protection and improving Biodiversity
DM2 – Epping Forest SAC and the Lee Valley SPA
DM3 – Landscape character, ancient Landscapes and Geodiversity
DM4 – Green Belt
DM10 – Housing design and quality
DM15 – Managing and reducing flood risk
DM19 – Sustainable water usage  
DM21 - Local Environmental Impacts, Pollution and Land Contamination
DM22 – Air Quality
H1 – Housing Mix and accommodation types 
H2 – Affordable Housing

Consultation carried out and summary of representations received 

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – NO OBJECTION – but registered a CONCERN for the 
application. Members felt that the proposed 5 storey development was too high and would cause 
significant harm to the character and appearance of the locality.  Moreover the proposal would 
likely set a precedent in favour of similarly harmful development elsewhere in the locality and 
would exacerbate the harm caused to its character and appearance. 

LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION (PLANS GROUP) – OBJECTION – The development 
has windows and balconies of the upper storeys which will overlook the rear gardens of Habgood 
Road.

49 HABGOOD ROAD – OBJECTION – The building is excessively high and will cause a 
substantial loss of light to residents. 

50 HABGOOD ROAD– OBJECTION – The proposal will have a negative impact on our property 
by reducing light and appearing overbearing. The entrance will be onto the High Road which will 
cause more congestion and will not be safe for users of the pavement and road. 

51 HABGOOD ROAD – OBJECTION – The proposal will cause harm by causing a loss of light 
and will result in overlooking from high level windows. It is also out of scale and will appear overly 
prominent in the street scene. 

Page 40



53 HABGOOD ROAD - OBJECTION – The proposal has inadequate parking and the access is 
poor. The building is too high and will appear harmful in the street scene and cause a loss of light 
to neighbours. 

55 HABGOOD ROAD – OBJECTION – The proposal will impact on light and would result in a loss 
of privacy from overlooking

58 HABGOOD ROAD – OBJECTION – The development will block out light and cause harm to 
living conditions. 

59 HABGOOD ROAD - OBJECTION – The proposal will cause significant harm to my privacy and 
cause a loss of light. The building appears out of scale and harmful to its surroundings. 

60 HABGOOD ROAD – OBJECTION – The new development is out of scale with the surrounding 
areas and would cause harm to the character of the street scene. It will also cause a significant 
loss of light and outlook and harm privacy. 

62 HABGOOD ROAD – OBJECTION - The proposed development would be totally out of keeping 
with the current roof heights on that block. It would cause my property a significant loss of light. 

68 HABGOOD ROAD – OBJECTION – The development is out of scale and cramped amongst 
existing buildings. It will appear overly prominent in relation to Morisons next door and will cause 
substantial overlooking and cause a loss of light to neighbours on Habgood Road.  

NO ADDRESS GIVEN – OBJECTION – The height of the building is excessive and would impact 
the character and appearance of the street scene. Local facilities will be stretched and parking is 
already a problem in this area. 

Issues and considerations 

The main issues to consider when assessing this application are the principle of the development, 
its site specific requirements, housing supply, affordable housing, potential harm to the living 
conditions of neighbours, the design of the proposal in relation to the character of the area, private 
amenity space issues, parking and access, refuse, landscaping, contaminated land and land 
drainage and the potential effects on the Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation

Principle of development 

This application site has been included in the Epping Forest Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017 
as a site allocated for approximately 29 new residential units (LOU.R8).  The meaning of new 
housing development is defined in the Glossary of the emerging Local Plan as:

Proposals for all forms of residential development comprising self-contained accommodation, 
providing the facilities required for day-to-day private domestic existence.  This includes but is not 
limited to dwellings, housing for older people, housing with care, supported housing and other 
forms of specialist accommodation. It does not include traveller site development (Policy H 4), 
community-led housing, or houses in multiple occupation.

The applicant seeks to use the new development for retirement apartments, which falls within the 
residential allocation identified by the Local Plan.  As previously identified, the emerging plan 
forms a material planning consideration of significant weight in the decision making process and 
thus the principle of the development is appropriate for this site. 

In addition to the proposed allocation of the site in the submission version of the Local Plan, the 
site is located on Loughton High Road which has access to many local shops and services as well 

Page 41



as being in close proximity to local bus routes and Loughton Underground station.  For those 
reasons the application site is considered to be in a highly sustainable location adding weight to 
the conclusion that residential development at this site is acceptable in principle 

Site specific requirements contained with the Local Plan 

As previously identified, this site is allocated in the emerging Local Plan which has been approved 
by Members and is the Plan that the Council seeks to submit to the Planning Inspectorate for 
examination.  As part of its allocation, the site has some specific requirements, which includes two 
financial contributions to be paid to the Council in lieu of consent for:

 Access management and monitoring of visitors to the Epping Forest Special Area of 
Conservation 

 Implementing Controlled Parking Zones in the vicinity of the site 

Having had regard to paragraph 4.12 of the Epping Forest District Council Planning Policy Briefing 
Note (March 2018) significant weight is being attached to the policies of the emerging Local Plan 
where relevant and appropriate, including the site specific requirements on proposed allocated 
sites.  These are considered in the relevant sections later in this report. 

Housing supply 

The emerging Local Plan has identified sites for new housing development; however at the 
moment the plan has not been examined in public, nor adopted.  As a consequence the Council 
can currently only demonstrate a 1.35 year supply of land for housing purposes, a significant 
shortfall from the required 5 year supply. 

The lack of a demonstrable five year supply of housing weighs in favour of granting planning 
permission.  It is also recognised that recent appeal decisions have made it clear that policies for 
the supply of housing should not be considered ‘up-to-date’ if the LPA cannot demonstrate a five-
year supply of deliverable housing sites. 

Affordable housing

Policy H2 of the Epping Forest Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017 seeks that for development 
proposals which would provide 11 or more residential units, at least 40% of them will be for 
affordable housing. This is however subject to the viability of the scheme, where the NPPF states:

To ensure viability, the costs of any requirements likely to be applied to development, such as 
requirements for affordable housing, standards, infrastructure contributions or other requirements 
should, when taking account of the normal cost of development and mitigation, provide competitive 
returns to a willing land owner and willing developer to enable the development to be deliverable. 

Clearly the Government recognises the importance of delivering new housing and as such the 
viability of residential developments is of significant importance when assessing potential financial 
and affordable housing contributions. 

As with the currently adopted Local Plan, the emerging Local Plan contains a mechanism where 
the applicant may submit a financial and viability appraisal to be considered by the Council as part 
of the application.  In this instance such an appraisal has been submitted for consideration. 

Kift Consulting (KC) is used by the Council as independent assessors for viability and financial 
appraisals and has considered the report submitted by the applicant.  KC usually considers that a 
profit margin of between 15% and 17.5% is reasonable for most general needs schemes, whereas 
the applicant considers that 20% is reasonable. In this instance KC have concluded that:

Page 42



KC is aware (there are numerous planning appeal decisions with the latest being in January 2018) 
that the expected level of return on risk (profit) for 13 retirement living schemes is currently around 
20% of GDV recognising the marginally increased risk this type of development faces. Therefore 
KCL feels that a profit margin of 20% of GDV is not unreasonable.

For this proposal a 20% profit margin is accepted as the benchmark level and in this context KC 
considers that there is no surplus capital to provide affordable housing on the site, or to provide a 
financial contribution in lieu.  On that basis it is concluded the applicant has demonstrated that 
providing any affordable housing would render the scheme unviable and therefore no affordable 
housing is required for this development. 

Living conditions of neighbours

The rear elevation of the neighbouring dwellings located above the Hetheringtons block, fronting 
onto the High Road is approximately 14m from the five storey element of the proposed new 
building.  These flatted units have windows on their rear elevations and are therefore particularly 
sensitive to significant change over the existing situation.  As part of the proposal, the applicant 
has undertaken a daylight/sunlight assessment in accordance with the Building Research 
Establishments (BRE, 2011) guidance. 

The assessment concludes that whilst there would be some impact to these neighbours it would 
not be significant and would fall within accepted levels of harm in accordance with the BRE 
guidance.  Indeed this conclusion is consistent with officers own analysis in that, a 25 degree line 
taken from the centre of these first floor windows, would not be significantly intercepted by the fifth 
storey of the proposal.  This also follows the view that the South Area Committee took in the 
previously refused application, where a six storey block was proposed at the same distance to 
these neighbours and Members concluded that there would not be substantial harm to the 
neighbours in that case. 

The majority of the five storey bulk is set against the side elevation of Morisons and thus would not 
impact on the living conditions of neighbours.  The building then steps down to the north to four 
storeys in the middle of the site and then down to three storeys on the northern boundary, adjacent 
to the Methodist Church.  The previous application (EPF/1545/16) was refused in part due to the 
potential harm to the Methodist Church where Members refused consent for the following reason:

By reason of its height, bulk, scale and siting in relation to the Loughton Methodist Church and 
church hall, the proposal would cause an excessive degree of overshadowing of windows and 
space between the buildings such that it would have a detrimental effect upon the functioning of 
the Church and church hall, contrary to Local Plan and Alterations policy DBE2, which is 
consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework.

As part of this revised proposal, prior to the submission of the planning application, the applicant 
undertook community engagement to evolve their design concept.  A meeting with representatives 
of the Methodist Church was undertaken and the apparent feedback on the revised proposals was 
that the revisions made to the design were encouraging.  In this application the Methodist Church 
has not objected to the proposal and this endorses this assertion from the applicant.  In any event, 
the three storey section adjacent to the Church would not cause it substantial loss of light, nor 
overshadowing.  This has also been endorsed by the applicants BRE assessment which 
concludes that there would not be excessive overshadowing to the Church. 

Habgood Road runs to the north west of the application site and mainly consists of two storey 
terrace and semi-detached properties which house a single residential unit.  Notwithstanding the 
distance between the proposed development and these neighbours, Members of the Committee 
refused planning permission for the previous application (EPF/1545/16) partly due to the potential 

Page 43



harm to these neighbours.  Within this revised scheme, the bulk adjacent to Morisons carpark has 
been reduced and now steps down from south to north from five storeys, to four and then to three.  
In addition the distance from the eastern boundary of the site and the rear gardens of these 
neighbours on Habgood Road is approximately 40m and around 66m from their rear elevations.  
This in combination with the reduction to the proposed bulk will ensure that there will not be 
significant harm to the living conditions of these neighbours through either overlooking from high 
level windows or through a loss of light or outlook. 

In summary the proposal will not significantly harm the living conditions of any nearby neighbour 
and therefore is compliant with DBE9 of the Adopted Local Plan and with DM9 (H) of the Epping 
Forest Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017. 

Standard of accommodation provided

The applicants BRE assessment has confirmed that 15 of the new dwellings (52%) complies with 
the recommended levels of sunlight/outlook given by the guidance. The assessment goes on to 
conclude that given the significant site constraints, with particular reference to the large Morisons 
building which is adjacent to the proposal, that this is the highest standard which could be feasibly 
achieved. 

The first point to address is that the BRE guidance is intended to be interpreted flexibly based on 
the constraints of the site and the merits of the case.  Indeed the introduction states that:

The guide is intended for building designers and their clients, consultants and planning officials.  
The advice given here is not mandatory and the document should not be seen as an instrument of 
planning policy.  Its aim is to help rather than constrain the designer.  Although it gives numerical 
guidelines, these should be interpreted flexibly because natural lighting is only one of many factors 
in site layout design.

Indeed since the site has been allocated in the emerging Local Plan with an indicative capacity of 
29 dwellings and that the BRE assessment has concluded that this is the highest level of outlook 
which could be achieved given the site constraints, it is concluded that this is an acceptable level 
of outlook and sunlight for the new dwellings. 

As part of the emerging Local Plan, the Council is seeking to adopt the Technical Housing 
Standards – nationally described space standard (CLG, 2015). Essentially this document 
recommends minimum internal space standards for different sizes of residential dwelling.  In this 
case, all but two of the units meet these requirements and the two that do not are only 1sqm under 
the requirement.  Given the constraints of the site and the small distance from meeting the 
requirement, it is concluded that this is acceptable. 

Design

The building will be significantly set back from the High Road and has a number of three storey 
buildings in front of it.  As such it will only be visible from views directly in front of the existing 
access; consequently it will not appear overly prominent when viewed from public areas of the 
High Road.  The full extent of the building will be visible from the Morrisons Public car park and 
from dwellings on Habgood Road.  However, from this perspective the majority of the building will 
be set against the backdrop of the existing three storey buildings fronting the High Road and 
therefore will not appear overly prominent within the context of its surroundings.  As such the 
overall bulk, scale and mass of the development will not cause harm to the character or 
appearance of the street scene. 

There are many two, three and four storey flat roof properties which front the High Road and which 
contribute to its character and appearance.  The proposed development contains elements of the 

Page 44



existing street scene, with the proposed flat roof, however is marked by its use of modern 
materials and innovative design.  Therefore in terms of its detailed design the proposal preserves 
the character and appearance of the area.

Private amenity space

The applicant has included a small shared garden for new residents to utilise.  Given that the site 
is located in a highly urbanised area on Loughton High Road, the opportunity for achieving such 
space is very limited.  As such a garden of this type to be shared by residents a reasonable.

Parking and vehicle use

The applicant has shown 20 new vehicle parking bays for the development, clearly not sufficient 
for one space per dwelling.  However as the site is located on the High Road, which has excellent 
facilities and services as well as a large number of bus routes and Loughton Underground Station 
which offers regular services into London, fewer than one space per dwelling is sufficient. 

As previously discussed the emerging Local Plan contains some specific requirements for this 
application site, one of which is that on-site parking should be limited to only serve the essential 
needs of the development.  Notionally it is intended that residents should, where possible in 
sustainable locations, be discouraged from car ownership.  Since the site is in a very sustainable 
location, this is an important requirement to pursue.  The offer of 20 spaces is considered to 
exceed the essential needs of the development and therefore is not currently compliant with this 
site specific requirement.  However, notwithstanding the detail shown on the drawings, the parking 
provision can be agreed by condition to ensure that it only serves the needs of the development. 

A further site specific requirement is that there should be the provision for on-site car clubs/car 
sharing or pooling, visitor and blue badge holders.  The applicant has explored the possibility of 
introducing a car club operator onto the site, unfortunately no potential interest from operators was 
secured.  However, there is the potential to secure car sharing and car pooling arrangements for 
residents as part of a Section 106 legal agreement.  This will ensure compliance with this site 
specific requirement.  

As previously identified another site specific requirement is that financial contributions will be 
sought for implementing Controlled Parking Zones in the vicinity of the site.  The applicant has 
indicated a willingness to enter into a Section 106 Legal agreement to ensure that this contribution 
is secured.  Notwithstanding the applicant’s willingness, the lack of identified opportunities in close 
proximity to the site at the present time together with the extent of existing controls within close 
proximity of the site mean that it would be unreasonable to seek such a contribution in this 
instance having had regard to paragraph 204 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  It 
should also be noted, as set out below, that Essex County Council, as Highway Authority, has 
raised no objection to the proposal in this regard.

Vehicle access to the site will be via an existing access road which was previously used by the 
Royal Mail sorting office.  Although relatively narrow, the proposal will not generate significant 
vehicle movements especially when compared to the original use of the road for uses connected 
to the sorting office.  As such the access is appropriate and will not cause any harm to the safety 
or efficiency of the public highway. 

The Essex County Council highway engineer has commented that:

The Highway Authority has considered the above planning application, visited the site and 
thoroughly assessed the submitted transport information and has concluded that the proposal is 
not contrary to National/Local policy and current safety criteria. 

Page 45



The applicant has submitted a Transport Statement (TS) that demonstrates, to the satisfaction of 
the Highway Authority, in terms of safety and capacity that the impact of the proposed 
development will be minimal on the highway in the vicinity of the site and on the wider highway 
network.  The existing access has appropriate visibility for the speed and is of sufficient width to 
allow two cars to pass each other.  The proposal will have the added benefit of removing any 
larger vehicles associated with the lawful use of the site. 

Given the very accessible location the parking provision is considered to be acceptable and will 
not cause any highway safety issues as the town centre has appropriate parking restrictions within 
the vicinity of the site. 

Consequently the Highway Authority has concluded that the proposal will not be detrimental to 
highway safety, capacity or efficiency.

Contaminated Land 

The applicant has submitted a contamination report which has been examined by the Councils 
advisor.  The report identifies that potential pollutant linkages may be present and therefore a 
Phase two assessment must be carried out.  This can be secured through the use of planning 
conditions. 

Trees and landscaping

The tree and landscape team have reviewed the application and have no objection to the proposal 
subject to conditions regarding suitable landscaping and tree protection in accordance with the 
details 

Land Drainage

The land drainage team have commented that they have no objection in principle to the 
development; however given its size a Flood Risk Assessment is required as well as details of 
surface water drainage.  These requirements can be met through the use of planning conditions. 

Ecology 

Ecology advice from Countrycare is that the proposal is acceptable subject to conditions to ensure 
that there will not be any significant impact on protected species.  A biodiversity enhancement plan 
shall also be submitted to the Council prior to the development. 

The site lies within close proximity to the Epping Forest SAC.  As set out in Policy DM 2 and DM 
22 of the emerging Local Plan, issues have been identified with respect to the effect of 
development on the integrity of the SAC as a result of increased visitor pressure arising from new 
residential development, and from relatively poor local air quality alongside the roads that traverse 
the SAC.  The Council is currently developing with partners an interim strategy for the 
management and monitoring of visitor pressures on the SAC.  This will include measures to be 
funded through the securing of financial contributions from new development in accordance with 
Policy DM 2.  Notwithstanding the fact that this work is yet to be completed the applicant has 
confirmed willingness to enter into a S106 agreement and recognises that the level of contribution 
is to be agreed after the committee.  The level of contribution to be sought will be negotiated such 
as to satisfy the tests set out in paragraph 204 of the NPPF and not impact on the viability of the 
scheme.

In respect of air quality, the applicant has submitted a Transport Statement which demonstrates 
that the level of increase in vehicle movements over and above the existing permitted use would 
result in a minimal increase in car movements during peak hours and would result in a reduction in 

Page 46



HGV traffic.  In addition, the application proposes the provision of passive ducting for Electric 
Vehicle Charging Points, which would support the encouragement of vehicles which do not 
produce harmful emissions.  Officers are of the view, based on the specific evidence submitted to 
support this application that the proposal can be screened out as having no likely significant effect 
on the Epping Forest SAC alone or in combination with other plans or projects in respect of air 
quality.  However, it is recommended that the final determination of this matter should be subject 
to consultation with Natural England in connection with development of the interim strategy.

Conclusion

The proposal will add substantially to the Councils housing supply within a sustainable area, whilst 
not causing significant harm to the living conditions of any neighbours, the character and 
appearance of the area, nor any other material planning considerations. 

Subject to the completion of consultation with Natural England, appropriate conditions and the 
satisfactory post committee agreement regarding levels of financial contribution and other 
elements contained within the Section 106 Legal agreement, the proposal is considered to comply 
with the emerging Local Plan and with all other policies of the Development Plan.  It is therefore 
recommended that Planning Permission is granted.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: James Rogers
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 371

or if no direct contact can be made please email:  contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

Page 47



 
36.3m

37.8m

43.9m

41.8m

40.2m

37.5m

Station House

102

110

1

Chigwell Station (LU)

Parkview

Br
oo

k

Pa
ra

de

Dolphin

Court

17

2

23Bank

17
7

185

Garage

114a

18
1

17
9

116

4

10

5

26

4a

1

PO

1

11

10b

14

11

5

36

18
7

46

21

2

H
IG

H
 R

O
AD

STATION ROAD

DI
CK

EN
S 

RI
SE

BARNABY WAY

NEW BARNS WAY

BR
O

O
K

 M
EW

S

Playground

TC
B

LB

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 5

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0201/18
Site Name: 1 Brook Parade, Chigwell, IG7 6PD

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 48



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/0201/18

SITE ADDRESS: 1 Brook Parade
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 6PD

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Chigwell Village

APPLICANT: The MSG Group

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

3 no. fascia signs and 1 no. projecting sign.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=604898

CONDITIONS 

NONE

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of site

The application site is located on Brook Parade, a local shopping parade made up of a row of 
shops with maisonettes above. A number of the shopfronts are illuminated. There is no great 
consistency in the depth of the fascia boards of the signs, however a number of the shop frontages 
are made up of plain fascia’s with raised individual acrylic or aluminium lettering.

Description of proposal

The application seeks advertisement consent for the display of signage on a shop front.  It would 
comprise of a grey fascia board some 400mm deep, with white internally illuminated acrylic 
lettering spelling Dominos, together with a blue and white acrylic tile logo.  It is also proposed to 
display an internally illuminated projecting sign with aluminium casing projecting some 600mm with 
a thickness 125mm.  The sign would comprise of the Dominos logo.

Relevant History

EPF/2931/16 - Change of use from use for purposes within Use Class A2 (Financial and 
Professional Services) to use for purposes within Use Class A5 (Hot Food Takeaway). 
Replacement of compressors. Erection of extraction duct and new shop entrance, and new fresh 
air intake grille. – Approved on appeal

Page 49

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=604898


Policies Applied

DBE13 – Advertisements 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight. 

Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017:

The Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017 has been approved for 
publication and is the Plan the Council intend to submit for independent examination.  The policies 
in the Plan are considered to be up to date and accord with national policy and therefore should be 
given substantial weight in the consideration of planning applications, in accordance with the 
Council’s decision on 14 December 2017 and paragraph 217 of the NPPF.  The policies and the 
Plan are supported by up to date and robust evidence – the evidence should also be treated as a 
material consideration.  The relevant policies in the context of the proposed development are:

DM13 – Advertisements

Representations Received

5 Neighbours consulted: 

NO COMMENTS RECIEVED

CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL:  The Council STRONGLY OBJECTS to this application, because 
the proposed projecting signage would be completely out of keeping with the existing aesthetic of 
Brook Parade. 

Issues and Considerations

The only issues that can be assessed within an advertising consent relate to the impact on 
amenity and impact on public safety of the area.  

Amenity 

The site was granted planning permission for use as a hot food takeaway within a parade of 
shops. The proposed signage is typical of local shopping parades and examples of the signage 
can be seen across the country.  The lettering is individual, and the illumination would be of the 
letters only and not a non-traditional box sign, which would be unwelcome within the parade.  The 
proposal is therefore not considered to have a detrimental impact on the general amenity of the 
area.

Impact on Public Safety

The illuminated signage would be of a low level of luminescence and would sit within a row of 
internally and externally illuminated shop fronts.  The highways officer has been consulted and has 
no objections to the proposal.  It is therefore not considered to have a detrimental impact on Public 
safety within Brook Parade.

Page 50



Conclusion

The above proposal is considered to take a positive approach towards shop front design and 
would demonstrably cause no harm to the interests of amenity and public safety.  On that basis 
the proposal is recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Corey Isolda
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564380

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 51



123

 

23.8m

24.4m

24.7m

1 
to

 1
2

Ro
xw

el
l H

ou
se

118b

16a
16

El Sub Sta

118a

7

120

136 to 142

144 to 150

10
7

97

91
93

66

99

87

10
3

68

10
5

70

10
9

134

12
5

128

15

11
3

11
7

5
7

11
513

3
1

82
80 78

51

84

55

59
45

61

47

21

20

17

25

15

12

1

11

20

10

2

7
1

37

2

41

31
89

15

95
10

1

27
29

23 11
1

2

11
9

3937

56 54

49

57

72

74
76

53
41

58 to 64

1 
to

 4

Danbury Lodge

35
12

22

63

32

47

VA
LL

EY
 H

IL
L

TY
LE

RS
 C

LO
SE

R
O

A
D

FELSTEAD

DA
N

BU
RY

KIRBY CLOSE

ROAD

SL

SL

km P 18.4

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 6

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0206/18
Site Name: 15 Felstead Road, Loughton, IG10 

3BB
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 52



Report Item No: 6
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0206/18

SITE ADDRESS: 25 Felstead Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3BB

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Roding

APPLICANT: Mr Alan Pugh

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Construction of new 4 bedroom house within site of existing house. 
Single storey rear extension to existing house.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=604914

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings numbered A1/649/01 and 02

3 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 

Page 53

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=604914


as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

5 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

6 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

7 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed at the site.  
The installed cleaning facilities shall be used to clean vehicles wheels immediately 
before leaving the site.

8 The works to the existing dwelling, comprising of construction of the rear extension, 
formation of vehicle crossover and construction of parking space (subject to details 
pursuant to condition 4 above) shall be fully completed prior to first occupation of the 
new dwelling hereby permitted.

9 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no extensions or roof 
enlargements generally permitted by virtue of Classes A and, B of Part 1 of 
Schedule 2 to the Order shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of 
the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The application site currently comprises a two storey, three bedroom  semi-detached house on a 
corner plot fronting the north side of Felstead Road and a return to the west side of Danbury Road.  
The property has not previously been extended beyond a small rear porch and outbuildings, 
including a detached garage served from Danbury Road, some of which have been removed 
recently.. Vehicle access is also available to the frontage which is predominantly paved.

Page 54



The surrounding area is wholly residential in character, comprising mostly two storey buildings. 
There is variety in built form and a number of adjacent blocks of purpose built flatted blocks each 
comprising of four units that are common to the area, including on the other corner of the junction 
and immediately to the rear.

Description of Proposal: 

This application proposes a four bedroom dwelling at the side of the existing house and a ground 
floor rear extension to that existing house.

The new dwelling is attached to the existing house and on the front elevation is of a matching 
design to the original – hipped roof, ground floor projecting bay and canopy, and matching 
fenestration.  The new building projects beyond the rear of the existing by 3.6m over two floors 
and across the full width, a hipped pitched roof over the rear element sits below the ridge line.  
One parking space is indicated on the frontage, utilising the existing crossover and parking at the 
rear is shown as retained, also from an existing crossover.

A single storey rear extension to the existing house is proposed 3m deep across the full width of 
the house with a flat roof 2.8m high.  A new parking space is indicated on the frontage served by a 
new crossover which of itself does not require planning permission although may be material to 
the current application.   

Relevant History:

Applications for a separate dwelling at the rear of the site were submitted in 1989 and 1991; both 
were refused permission and appeals were dismissed. 

EPF/1404/17 Outline application for three bedroom house approved – the plan accompanying the 
application was a simple site plan showing a building at the side of the existing with a similar 
footprint; no other details were submitted.

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

CP1 Achieving sustainable development objectives
CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
CP7 Urban form and quality
DBE2 Effect on neighbouring properties
DBE3 Design in urban areas
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
DBE10 Residential extensions
ST4 Road safety
ST6 Vehicle parking

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Page 55



Draft Local Plan:

The Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017 has been approved for 
publication and is the Plan the Council intend to submit for independent examination.  The policies 
in the Plan are considered to be up to date and accord with national policy and therefore should be 
given substantial weight in the consideration of planning applications in accordance with the 
Council’s decision on 14 December 2017 and paragraph 217 of the NPPF.  The policies and the 
Plan are supported by up to date and robust evidence – the evidence should also be treated as a 
material consideration.  The relevant policies in the context of the proposed development are:

SP1 Presumption in favour of sustainable development
SP2 Spatial Development Strategy
SP7 Natural Environment, landscape character and green infrastructure
T1 Sustainable transport choices
DM9 High Quality Design
DM10 Housing design and quality
SP6 Natural Environment, landscape character and green infrastructure
DM9 High Quality Design
DM10 Housing design and quality

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted:  Six
Site notice posted:  No, not required
Responses received:  The attached neighbour at 27 FELSTEAD ROAD has commented on a 
number of issues relating to party wall issues arising from the extension to the existing house and 
foul drainage. These issues do not directly affect the consideration of the planning application.
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: Loughton Town Council have commented as under:

The Committee OBJECTED to this application and reiterated their comments 
for the previous application EPF/1404/17, which were:

The Committee OBJECTED to this application which was considered garden grabbing; it 
would be detrimental to the street scene and result in a loss of amenity for neighbouring 
properties, contrary to policies DBE2 and DBE9 of the Local Plan and Alterations and the 
provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Main Issues and Considerations:

Although the application is not submitted as a reserved matters application, the previous decision 
is material to the determination in this instance.  In approving the previous application, Committee 
Members have accepted the principle of a new dwelling attached to the side of the existing house.  
Thus, Parish Council objections to the principle of development of a new house attached to the 
existing have already been considered and not supported.

In terms of the form of the new dwelling, the front elevation is designed to match the existing, 
thereby providing consistency to Felstead Road.  The rear projecting element adds to the mass on 
the flank but this elevation is broken up by the lower ridge line and by the range of windows in the 
side elevation.  Corner properties with two storey side and rear projections of up to 3.6m depth as 
in this case are not uncommon in the wider area.  The larger footprint does not impact on usable 
amenity space unduly, excluding the area indicated for rear parking, a garden of around 100 sq.m. 
is provided.

The ground floor rear extension to the existing dwelling projects only 3m on the shared boundary 
and would in other circumstances be treated as permitted development, impact on the neighbour 

Page 56



at 27 is therefore minimal.  The extension also serves to screen much of the projection of the new 
dwelling such that the existing house is not adversely affected by the additional depth either in 
terms of direct amenity impact or visually from the overall size. 

The proposals provide adequate off street parking, two spaces for the new dwelling and one for 
the existing property.  A condition requiring the new crossover to the existing house to be provided 
prior to occupation is appropriate. 

Conclusion:

The principle of a new dwelling on the site has already been supported by Members when 
approving the original application and the current application does not alter the considerations that 
led to that decision.  The primary consideration therefore relates to the design and direct impact of 
the larger 4 bedroom form and the additional extension on the existing house. In design terms, the 
scale of the building is appropriate to this location and the mass has been managed by the lower 
roof on the rear element.  The front elevation is particular is consistent with the street scene. The 
rear elements are acceptable in scale and mass and have no adverse impact on neighbours 
beyond the site boundary.

Conditions are appropriate to require the works to the existing dwelling to be completed prior to 
occupation, to scree the two storey projection at the rear and to provide off-street parking, and to 
remove permitted development rights for further additions that could be unduly bulky given the 
extent of the development already proposed.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Ian Ansell
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564481

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 57



123

 

55.8m

MP 6.75

57.6m

62.8m

Chigwell

30

Lawn Tennis Club

3

189

181

183

175

1a

8

167

165

1

Grange

Manor2

ESS

1

17

18

11

15
b

13

14
18

16

17

29

15

30

155

153

1

1 to 17

Park
Grange

11

2

2

2a

2b

2c

1a

188

1

1

186

1

DRIVE

W
A

R
R

E
N

 C
O

U
R

T

MANOR ROAD

ROSEBERRY

G
RAN

G
E CRESCEN

T

Court

LB

HILL
GRANGE

Mast

Tennis

SL

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 7

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0330/18
Site Name: 157 Manor Road, Chigwell, IG7 

5QA
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 58



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/0330/18

SITE ADDRESS: 157 Manor Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5QA

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Grange Hill

APPLICANT: Mr Minal Harji

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Change of use of existing outbuildings r/o 157 and r/o 159 to class 
B1 (A) - business start up units

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=605521

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings numbers 8434/301, 302 and 303. The ancillary storage areas 
indicated on the approved plans shall be retained as storage space and shall not be 
used as office space.

3 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended, and the Town and 
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting those Orders), the buildings shall only be 
used for office purposes as defined within Class B1 of the said Use Classes Order 
and for no other purpose (including ay other purpose within Class B1)  without the 
prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

4 The buildings shall only be used between 7am and 7pm Mondays to Fridays, 7am  
and 5pm Saturdays, and at no times on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays without 
prior consent from the Local Planning Authority.

Page 59

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=605521


This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The application site comprises two of three newly built units at the rear of 157-161 Manor Road, 
accessible from pedestrian routes from the north on Manor Road and from the south on Grange 
Crescent.  These units follow a previous scheme for similar buildings located to the rear of 163 
and 165 Manor Road, the latter abutting Grange Crescent.  Part of that development is used in 
connection with the business at 163 while the remainder is linked to the office on the frontage  At 
the western end of the terrace is a two storey building previously built to the rear of 153 which 
includes residential accommodation on the upper floor.

The frontage buildings at this point comprise ground floor shop with two residential floors above, 
the residential space is accessed solely from the rear alley and some may have been converted to 
2 units.  To the rear, the site abuts the boundary with new residential flats fronting Grange 
Crescent, which itself is wholly residential

Description of Proposal: 

The application seeks the use of two units for offices within use class B1 for business start-up 
units.  The submitted plan indicates office space on the ground floor with storage in the roof, no 
alterations to the buildings are required as part of this application.

The applicants supporting statement points out that the units are suited only to small scale 
businesses with limited staffing and that the site is close to rail and bus services. The original 
permission restricts use to purposes linked to the adjacent shops and without uptake from more 
than one, the two remaining cannot be reasonably let without some change to the terms of the 
permission.  The applicants research also indicates a demand for small, flexible accommodation in 
the local market..

Relevant History:

EPF/0390/17 Outbuildings at rear approved, including restriction by condition to ancillary use.

EPF/2264/17 Change of use of existing outbuildings r/o 159 and r/o 157 to B1 class use – 
refused on potential increase in vehicle and pedestrian activity from unspecified use 
within Class B1

Applications for adjoining buildings as under:

153 MANOR ROAD – at western end of the terrace. An outbuilding on the land at the rear was 
approved in 2002 subject to ancillary use condition. A first floor over this for ancillary residential 
accommodation (a self contained one bed unit) was approved in 2014 subject to s106 agreement 
preventing separate disposal.

165 MANOR ROAD – land on Grange Crescent frontage. A garage building was approved in 
2011. In 2013 area committee approved change of use application for use as B1 office.

163 MANOR ROAD – the ancillary building at this site was approved in 2015 with no use 
conditions, although ancillary use was mentioned in description.

1A and 2A GRANGE CRESCENT – residential block the south approved in 2014.

Page 60



Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
E12 Small scale business / working from home
DBE2 Effect on neighbouring properties
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
ST4 Road safety
ST6 Vehicle parking

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Draft Local Plan:

The Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017 has been approved for 
publication and is the Plan the Council intend to submit for independent examination.  The policies 
in the Plan are considered to be up to date and accord with national policy and therefore should be 
given substantial weight in the consideration of planning applications in accordance with the 
Council’s decision on 14 December 2017 and paragraph 217 of the NPPF.  The policies and the 
Plan are supported by up to date and robust evidence – the evidence should also be treated as a 
material consideration.  The relevant policies in the context of the proposed development are:

SP7 Natural Environment, landscape character and green infrastructure
E1 Employment sites
DM9 High Quality Design

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted:  26
Responses received:  
Two responses have been received, from businesses at 161 and 169 MANOR ROAD. Both 
comment on improvements made to the general conditions as a result of the buildings and refer to 
the need for business start up units in Chigwell.

CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL: Chigwell Parish Council have OBJECTED to the application on 
grounds that the proposal would exasperate the existing inadequacy of parking facilities.  The 
Parish Council noted that the objection could be rescinded if there was evidence that parking was 
available for the users.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The application now before Members is evidently more specific than the previous application for 
more general use within Class B1.  The use for small office suites can be expected to generate 
little noise and general movement such that there would be undue impact on residents particularly 
above the shops on Manor Road, this can be further safeguarded by an appropriate hours 
restriction.

Parking controls already exist in the area, including double yellow lines along one side of Grange 
Crescent extending around 200m from the Manor Road junction.  It is acknowledged that kerbside 

Page 61



parking in available areas in the immediate vicinity is heavily used, but there is no evidence that 
this is all generated by local businesses – the absence of any further restrictions is equally likely to 
generate commuter parking – and other powers are available to introduce further controls to 
address this.  The applicants have indicated that they have parking available within a garage and 
parking court at the rear of 177-181 Manor Road via an access shared with the tennis club in 
which the applicant has control of four garages and the frontage area. While it is apparent they 
have some control over this space, it would not seem possible to guarantee parking specifically for 
the proposed use. However, the level of parking stress arising from the proposal is minimal and 
could not be assessed as being materially greater than the use of the buildings for other purposes 
already permitted.

Officers attach some weight to the comments of other local businesses, particularly in relation to 
an apparent need for this type of small scale start up unit in the area.  The applicant’s research 
indicates a demand for low cost start-up units on flexible, short term agreements, particularly 
businesses that may have been started from home and are beginning to grow.  The facilities being 
offered do appear to be unique in the area and no comparable premises have been immediately 
identified.

Conclusion:

The proposal appears to offer a unique opportunity for small scale business space not readily 
available in the surrounding area. Provided the premises remain used for offices space and 
operate during normal working hours, both of which can be conditioned, then no amenity issues 
arise.

The Parish Council concerns over parking in the vicinity of the site are acknowledged, but officers 
note that no objections from local residents have been received on this issue.  The proposed use 
itself generates minimal vehicle activity and parking demand, and other controls are available to 
deal with the wider issues.

The proposals are therefore consistent with local plan objectives to support business development.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Ian Ansell
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564481

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 62



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 63



123

 

44.8m

47.2m

43.3m

41.8m

Ward Bdy

CS

W
ychwood

Da
le

sid
e

Bu
rc

ro
ft

W
in

de
rm

er
e

Lierre

Craigellachie

The Briars

15

19

16

5

11

Windrush

Pine Lodge

Derwen

Lochbie

Eastwood

Wetheral

Greenacres

Long Meadow

45

The Willows

Hillview

Aingarth

11a

3

VICARAGE LANE

DALESIDE GARDENS

Path (um)

Allotment Gardens

Chigwell B
rook

Dr
ai

n

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 8

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0336/18
Site Name: Greenacres, Vicarage Lane, 

Chigwell, IG7 6LS
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 64



Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/0336/18

SITE ADDRESS: Greenacres
Vicarage Lane
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 6LS

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Chigwell Village

APPLICANT: Mrs Leanne Sugarman

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed railings to front and side of driveway.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=605527

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: JA12_E_NE_001 P1; JA12_E_SE_001 P1; 
JA12_P_00_001 P1; G200_P_00_001 P1; G200_E_SE_001 P1; G200_E_NE_001 
P1 

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site:

‘Greenacres’ comprises of a large 2-storey detached dwellinghouse located to the south of 
Vicarage Lane which is residential in character. The property has an existing integral garage, hard 
surfaced front driveway with an ingress and egress vehicular access points.  A 0.9m high front 
boundary wall with pillars is sited to the middle of the frontage in between the access points. 

Page 65

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=605527


Description of Proposal:

The proposal seeks planning permission to:

 Install 1.05m high railings on top of the existing 750mm high front boundary wall giving an 
overall height of 1.8m and erect 2.0m high pillars. 

 Erect 1.8m high electric sliding gates in the form of railings within a metal box frame and 
finials to the vehicle access points, raising the height of the post sited to the west boundary 
to 2m and raising the height of the post sited to the west boundary to 2.2m due to a fall in 
levels.  

 Railings to the east front boundary of the property adjacent to a low wall on the boundary at 
Burcroft to a maximum height of 2.0m.  There is no proposal for the western boundary with 
Windrush.  It is already enclosed by a wall with railings over at Windrush..

Relevant History:

EPF/1802/17 - Two storey and First floor rear extension and porch (Revised application to 
EPF/0981/17)   - Grant 17/08/2017
EPF/0981/17 - Single storey and first floor rear extension, front porch and internal alterations -     
Grant 31/05/2017
EPF/1531/87 - Two storey side and single storey rear extension - Grant 04/12/87
EPF/0229/60 - Detached house and garage   -  Grant   21/09/1960

Polices Applied:

Adopted Local Plan

CP2 -   Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
RP5a - Environment Impacts
DBE1 - Design of New Building
DBE2 - Impact on Neighbouring Properties
DBE3 - Design in Urban Areas
DBE9 - Loss of Amenity
DBE10- Residential Extensions 
ST4 – Road safety

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017

Page 66



The Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017 has been approved for 
publication and is the Plan the Council intend to submit for independent examination.  The policies 
in the Plan are considered to be up to date and accord with national policy and therefore should be 
given substantial weight in the consideration of planning applications in accordance with the 
Councils decision on 14 December 2017 and Paragraph 217 of the NPPF.  The policies and the 
Plan are supported by up to date and robust evidence – the evidence should also be treated as a 
material consideration. The relevant policies in the context of the proposed development are: 

DM9 - High quality design
DM10 - Housing Design and Quality

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted:  2
Responses received:  No response received from neighbours.

CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL:  The Council OBJECTS to this application because the proposed 
gates and piers are excessively high.   This development would have an adverse impact upon the 
neighbouring property at Burcroft.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The principle issues for consideration for this development are the visual impact on the character 
and amenity of the surrounding area, the impact on the amenities of the adjoining properties and 
the consequence for highway safety.

Design and Visual Amenity:

Vicarage Lane comprises in the main of properties with wide and deep front driveways some 
which have low front wall, open frontages and some with front boundary railings enclosing the 
driveways.  Black metal railings are already an existing feature in Vicarage Road; ‘Windrush’ sited 
to the west of the application property is in the process of having boundary railings and electric 
sliding railings installed in accordance with planning permission EPF/1701/17 and as such the 
principle is considered acceptable, in keeping with the character of the property and surrounding 
area. The concerns of Chigwell Parish Council in relation to the height of the proposal are noted 
but the proposed railings would be no higher than existing railings installed at other properties in 
Vicarage Road.

Impact on Neighbouring Amenity:

The railings and gates to the front are of no consequence for neighbours living conditions while 
railings adjacent to Burcroft, due to their limited height and open appearance would not appear 
excessively overbearing to the extent that outlook would be unduly harmed.  It is therefore 
concluded the proposed boundary enclosure would not result in any material harm to the 
amenities presently enjoyed by the occupiers of the adjoining properties. 

Highway Safety:

Page 67



From a highway and transportation perspective the Highway Authority has no objections to the 
proposal that complies with the Highway Authority’s Development Management Policies, adopted 
as County Council Supplementary Guidance in February 2011 and policy ST4 of the Local Plan.

Conclusion:

Having regard to the pattern of development in the locality he proposed development is of an 
acceptable design which would relate well to the existing house and respect the character and 
appearance of locality.  It would not cause excessive harm to the living conditions of any 
neighbours and the Highway Authority confirms it would not cause harm to the interests of 
highway safety.  Accordingly, the proposal complies with the relevant policies as set out above 
and it is recommended that planning permission be granted.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Caroline Brown
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564182

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 68



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 69



123

 

60.0m

CF

Ward Bdy

21

31

61

3 56
55

11

10

21

29

71

7

66

15

1

13

56
75

6

16

38

24

30

18

20

19

24

51

46

41

HILL TOP CLOSE

ROUNDMEAD AVENUE

HILL TOP

WELLFIE
LDS

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 9

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0353/18
Site Name: 71 Roundmead Avenue, Loughton, 

IG10 1PZ
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 70



Report Item No: 9

APPLICATION No: EPF/0353/18

SITE ADDRESS: 71 Roundmead Avenue
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1PZ

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Johns

Loughton St Marys

APPLICANT: Mr Mark Perring 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Alterations/extension to existing roof/loft conversion, alterations to 
existing ground floor rear extension, garage conversion/internal 
alterations.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=605597

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

The application site comprises of a two storey detached house located on the eastern side of 
Roundmead Avenue, opposite it’s junction with Roundmead Close. The house has been 
previously extended to the rear at ground floor and on two-storeys to the side.  The original roof 
has a rear facing dormer window. The site is not within a conservation area.

Page 71

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=605597


Description of Proposal: 

It is proposed to raise the roof of the side extension to match that of the original roof and to alter 
the form from the original gabled roof to part hipped.  The existing rear facing dormer window 
would be altered to have a 600mm set in from the flank and would be extended across the rear 
slope of the proposed raised roof with matching set in. 

It is also proposed to carry out alterations to the existing rear addition, removing a central glazed 
link/conservatory and unify its form.  There would be no overall increase in height of the extension 
and no increase in its projection from the rear wall.

Submitted plans show an integral garage within the existing side extension would be converted to 
provide a study and a utility room with garage doors being replaced by a wall containing a window.  
The conversion of the garage is not development and the associated alterations to the external 
appearance of the house are Permitted Development therefore the Council cannot exercise 
planning control over them.  Consequently, they will not be assessed in this report.

Relevant History:

EPF/1545/01 – Double storey side and single storey rear extension – Permission Granted.

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
DBE9 Excessive loss of amenity for neighbouring properties
DBE10 Design of Residential Extensions

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017:

The Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017 has been approved for 
publication and is the Plan the Council intend to submit for independent examination.  The policies 
in the Plan are considered to be up to date and accord with national policy and therefore should be 
given substantial weight in the consideration of planning applications, in accordance with the 
Council’s decision on 14 December 2017 and paragraph 217 of the NPPF.  The policies and the 
Plan are supported by up to date and robust evidence – the evidence should also be treated as a 
material consideration.  The relevant policies in the context of the proposed development are:

DM 9 High Quality Design

Consultation Carried Out Summary of Representations Received

Number of neighbours Consulted: 5.  No response received

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL - The Committee OBJECTED to this application on the grounds 
that the proposal was overbearing and would be detrimental to the street scene.
Members commented that they would prefer a hipped roof to match the neighbouring property. 

Page 72



Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issues to be considered with this application relate to the impact on the character and 
appearance of the locality and neighbouring amenities. 

Character and appearance:

The proposed single storey rear extension would replace the existing conservatory linking two 
extensions and would not extend beyond the existing rear extension wall.  A false pitch would be 
removed revealing the flat roof form of the extension.  The external finishes would match the 
existing house.  The proposal has a simple design that would complement the design of the 
existing house.

The roof alterations would unify the appearance of the house by creating a single symmetrical 
roof.  The existing gable end adjacent to 70 Roundmead Avenue would be softened by forming a 
part hipped roof and the roof enlargement adjacent to 72 Roundmead Road would be designed to 
match that alteration.  An existing dormer window that extends across the entire rear roof slope 
would be pulled in from the flank adjacent to no. 70 and extended across the rear slope of the 
enlarged roof, maintaining a similar set in from the flank adjacent to no. 72.

The proposal would complement the design of the house, enhancing the appearance of the house 
by simplifying and improving the coherence of its form.

With regards to the Parish Council’s concerns, it is evident that the roof types on Roundmead 
Avenue are not uniform.  Moreover, the gabled and split level roof form of the existing house is in 
contrast to the form of its immediate neighbours.  By unifying the appearance of the house and 
altering an existing gable to a part hipped roof the proposal would better complement the 
neighbouring houses than the existing roof.

Living conditions of neighbours:

The proposal would have a limited impact on the living conditions of the neighbours. No additional 
overlooking would arise from the proposed alterations to the rear extension and the degree of 
overlooking likely to arise from the enlarged dormer window would not be excessive given the 
length of rear garden and the relationship of the existing house to its immediate neighbours.  
Having regard to that relationship, where houses are broadly in line, the roof enlargement would 
not appear excessively overbearing and certainly would not impact on outlook from the rear 
elevation of either 71 or 72 Roundmead Avenue.  There is no possibility of any harmful impact on 
light.

On the basis of that assessment it is concluded the proposal would safeguard the living conditions 
of the neighbours.

Conclusion:

The proposal would simplify and enhance the appearance of the existing house while respecting 
the visual relationship to neighbouring houses and safeguarding their living conditions.  It is 
therefore recommended that planning permission be granted.

Page 73



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Muhammad Rahman
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 562184

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 74



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 75



123

 

73.2m

20

16

19

23

35

9

73

1

67

4

71

8

5

18

10

9

5

11

12a

14

18
a

2

32

34

30

1a

33

CARROLL HILLCARROLL HILL

CLERKS PIECE

W
ES

T

VI
EW

EL
EV

EN
 A

CRE 
RIS

E

LB

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 10

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0523/18
Site Name: 12 Eleven Acre Rise, Loughton, 

IG10 1AN
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 76



Report Item No: 10

APPLICATION No: EPF/0523/18

SITE ADDRESS: 12 Eleven Acre Rise
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1AN

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Marys

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Reed

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition and remodel of the existing roof to allow for a master 
bedroom within the loft. Material changes to the existing house and 
a ground floor rear and side extension.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=606217

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)

Description of Site:

The application site comprises of a two storey detached dwelling built on a generous plot on 
Eleven Acre Rise, Loughton. There are significant land level changes on this cul-de-sac due to the 
topography of the site. The application dwelling is situated on the brow of the hill. 

Dwellings along this street have been significantly extended and altered over the years. There is 
no uniform architectural style and design of dwellings on this street. The street largely comprises 
of two storey detached dwellings which have generous front and rear gardens. Significant number 
of roof alterations and additions are visible along this street. These include front, side and rear 
dormers as well as hip to gable end roof forms and alterations.

Page 77

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=606217


The site is not within a Conservation area nor is it a Listed building. It is within a built up area of 
Loughton and is therefore not within the Metropolitan Green Belt.

Description of Proposal: 

Demolition and remodel of the existing roof to allow for a master bedroom within the loft. Material 
changes to the existing house and a ground floor rear and side extension.

Relevant History:

EPF/0847/13   Single storey side extension. Approved 

EPF/1186/91 First floor side extension and alterations. Approved and implemented

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
DBE10 Design of Residential Extensions

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017:

The Epping Forest District Local Plan (Submission Version) 2017 has been approved for 
publication and is the Plan the Council intend to submit for independent examination. The policies 
in the Plan are considered to be up to date and accord with national policy and therefore should be 
given substantial weight in the consideration of planning applications in accordance with the 
Council’s decision on 14 December 2017 and paragraph 217 of the NPPF. The policies and the 
Plan are supported by up to date and robust evidence – the evidence should also be treated as a 
material consideration. The relevant policies in the context of the proposed development are:

DM9 High Quality Design

Summary of Representations Received  

5 Neighbours consulted:

No representations received

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: OBJECTED to the proposal due to it being too bulky and its 
elevated position was too dominant from the street scene.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issues with this application relate to design and impact on amenity 

Page 78



Design

There are a range of roof types and architectural styles along this street. The proposed gable end 
roof is not significantly different to what can be achieved under permitted development. It requires 
planning permission due to the height increase, attaching existing first floor addition to the rear and 
therefore having a volume which would exceed 50 cubic metres allowed under permitted 
development. 

The proposed ground floor side and rear extension would not be readily visible from the street 
scene due to its siting and would be of a design and appearance that would complement the 
design of the existing house.

The re-location of the garage door would not require planning approval and would not affect the 
character of the existing house due to the minor nature of the alteration.

Living Conditions of neighbours

The proposed re-modelling of the existing roof would not result excessive harm to the living 
conditions of neighbours due to the small increase in the height of the existing roof and the 
spacing between the application site and neighbouring dwellings.  

The proposed single storey side and rear extension would not result in excessive harm to 
neighbour living conditions due to its height, width and depth.  The proposed garage alterations by 
their nature would not harm living conditions of neighbours. Proposed glazing to the flank elevation 
of the ground floor side and rear extensions would not result in creased overlooking compared with 
the existing situation.

Conclusion:

The proposal by reason of its size and scale would not result in excessive harm to the living 
conditions of no’s 12a and 11 Eleven Acre Rise. The proposal would complement design of 
existing house and would not appear out of character when viewed from the general street scene. 
The proposal therefore complies with relevant planning policy and it is recommended that planning 
permission be granted for the said development.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Sukhdeep Jhooti
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564298

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	updated Area Planning Subcommittee south - members photo sheet 17-18

	6 Development Control

